

## LEGISLATION PROPOSALS

**L 1 Glossary**      page xii      **Rules Committee**      **Delete**

~~**Body**—the torso, including shoulder and hips.~~

Rationale: References to “body” in the rule book refer to all of the body, a governing body, or a body of water. One reference refers to the “upper body”.

---

**L 2 Glossary**      page xii      **Rules Committee**      **Delete**

~~**Calm State or Surface**—normal level surface without turbulence.~~

Rationale: Term is not used in the rule book.

---

**L 3 Glossary**      page xii      **Rules Committee**      **Modify**

~~**Deck-Seeding**—with or without check-in, events are seeded at the time of the event using entries received prior to or at the meet.~~

Rationale: Unnecessary word.

---

**L 4 Glossary**      page xii      **Rules Committee**      **Modify**

~~**Drafting/Slipstreaming**—in open water...at the meet.~~

Rationale: “slipstreaming” is not used in the rule book.

---

**L 5 Glossary**      page xiii      **Rules Committee**      **Modify**

~~**Forward Start**—an entry made from a platform or deck while facing the course or a start made while in the water either facing the course or not facing the course.~~

Rationale: Clearer language.

---

**L 6 Glossary**      page xiv      **Rules Committee**      **Modify**

~~**Member**—an individual, club or organization ~~that~~ registered with USMS ~~through an LMSC~~.~~

Rationale: Unnecessary words.

---

**L 7 Glossary**      page xiv      **Rules Committee**      **Delete**

~~**Open Competiton**—competition that any qualified individual, club or organization may enter.~~

Rationale: Term is not used in the rule book.

---



in events sanctioned by USMS must be members of USMS registered through their LMSC or members of their nation's recognized Masters swimming governing body.

**RATIONALE: HOUSEKEEPING (CORRECTS AN INCONSISTENCY BETWEEN ARTICLE 201.1 AND 203.1.1B & 203.1.1C).**

---

**L 15 201.3.4** page 54 **Rules Committee** **Modify**

201.3.4 An unattached swimmer is an individual member who ~~does not represent a USMS club, is~~ registered with Club Unattached through the LMSC.

*Rationale:* Conform to and make effective the date that FINA proposed change MSW 6.2 becomes effective, should it pass the FINA Congress in July.

---

**L 16 201.3.5** page 54 **San Diego/Imperial** **Modify**

**201.3.5** A swimmer shall not represent any club in competition for 60 consecutive days before transferring affiliation to another club, unless this transfer takes place at the time of annual registration. A swimmer may declare unattached status at any time without written application. If a swimmer intends to compete in an event after declaring unattached status, then the swimmer shall notify the LMSC registrar of the declaration of unattached status prior to the event. The registrar shall change the club affiliation of the swimmer to unattached and note the effective date.

*Rationale:* For swimmers entering events after declaring unattached status, documentation is necessary for meet directors, Top 10 recorders, and registrars to be able to accurately reflect swimmer affiliation in event results/Top 10/records, etc., and to be able to verify swimmer compliance with the 60 day unattached period prior to a new club being represented.

---

**L 17 201.3.6** Page 55 **Board of Directors** **Modify**

201.3.6 All applications for changes of membership (including transfers) must be accompanied by a reasonable fee to be determined by USMS ~~and the LMSC in which the swimmer will register for change of membership.~~

**RATIONALE:** Currently all transfers must be done on paper forms and paid by check because each LMSC has its own pricing structure for transfers that can include as many as four fees (national transfer fee, LMSC transfer fee, LMSC fee, and club fee). Charging a standard and consistent transfer fee will enable USMS to implement the transfer process within the new registration system, a service to members, so transfers and information updates may occur in real time.

---

**L 18 202.1.1A** page 55 **Long Distance & Open Water Committees** **Modify**

A Applications for sanction shall be made to the LMSC within which the event is to be held, ~~and~~ Sanction applications shall be accompanied by ~~a copy~~ of the entry form and applicable fee.

*Rationale:* Housekeeping (grammar & consistency with USMS E2EEM online event sanction process).

---

**L 19 202.1.1A(1)** page 55 **Long Distance & Open Water Committees** **Modify**

(1) The entry forms shall contain the language of the liability release as stated in articles ~~204.1 and 204.1.2~~ 204. The language may only be modified by naming the sanctioning LMSC, sponsoring USMS club(s) and/or additional insured(s) following “UNITED STATES MASTERS SWIMMING INC.” All swimmers, before participating, shall have signed the liability release.

*Rationale: See rationale listed in article 204. The Rules Committee should be consulted.*

---

**L 20 202.1.1A(2) page 55 Long Distance & Open Water Committees Modify**

(2) ~~Event E~~entry forms and programs must bear the statement “Sanctioned by (LMSC name) for USMS Inc. Sanction Number: \_\_\_\_\_.”

*Rationale: Housekeeping (consistent language)*

---

**L 21 202.1.1 A (3) page 55 Records and Tabulation Committee Modify**

(3) Meet information shall include ONE of the following statements:

(a) The length of the competition course is in compliance and on file with USMS in accordance with articles 105.1.7 and 107.2.1.

(b) The length of the competition course has been measured and is NOT in compliance with USMS articles 105.1.7 and 107.2.1: times achieved in the meet will NOT be eligible for USMS Top 10 and Records.

(c) The length of the competition course is not on file with USMS. Eligibility of times achieved in this meet will be contingent upon pool length measurement and approval with USMS ; if bulkheads are present, their placement must also be confirmed by measurements at the meet. (USMS articles 105.1.7 and 107.2.1).

(d) The length of the competition course is in compliance and on file with USMS articles 105.1.7 and 107.2.1, but as a bulkhead course, is subject to length confirmation. Eligibility of times for USMS Top 10 and Records will be contingent on verification of bulkhead placement.

Rationale:

Currently the article 202.1.1F(4) states that the measurement status of a pool should be specified when it is known to be too short. However, this misses a lot of situations that can lead to times that are later found to be ineligible for Top 10 consideration. The proposed rule forces the meet host to certify the pool length prior to issuing a sanction, which is not always the case presently. The proposed rule also forces the meet host to disclose that faulty bulkhead measurements or placement may cause times to be ineligible for Top 10 consideration even if the pool length was certified. Even with the current rule, there have been numerous cases where meet participants have been unpleasantly surprised by to find that their times were not eligible for Top 10 consideration.

Other articles that would require changing in order to maintain consistency

202.1.1F(4), page 56

(4) Sanctioned events may be conducted in facilities not meeting the dimensional tolerance for required pool length, but the results of those events shall not count for USMS records and Top 10. In accordance with 202.1.1A(3), it must be noted in the meet information that events conducted in these facilities are noncompliant.

---

**L 22 202.1.1F(3)** page 56 **Rules Committee** **Modify**  
**(3)** Sanctioned events may include nonconforming swimming events so long as they are conducted in a safe manner. Nonconforming swimming events are events not defined in article 102.5, article 307.2.2G-J or that would typically result in the disqualification of participants as defined in article 102.13. USMS records and Top 10 times shall not be maintained in nonconforming events except for initial distances and relay leadoff split times for distances that are also events defined in article 102.5.

Rationale: Clarify that long distance events conducted in pools (i.e., 5/10 K and 3000/6000 yard) are conforming events for purposes of sanctioning and are therefore eligible for USMS records.

---

**L 23 202.1.1F(3)** page 56 **Long Distance Committees** **Modify**

**F** All sanctioned events are subject to the following conditions:

**(3)** Sanctioned events may include nonconforming swimming events so long as they are conducted in a safe manner. Nonconforming swimming events are events not defined in article 102.5 or 307.2.2.G-J, or that would typically result in the disqualification of participants as defined in article 102.13. USMS records and Top 10 times shall not be maintained in nonconforming events except for initial distances and relay leadoff split times for distances that are also events defined in article 102.5.

*Rationale: Clarify that long distance events conducted in pools (i.e., one hour, 5 & 10-km and 3000 & 6000-yd postal events) are conforming events for purposes of sanctioning and are therefore eligible for USMS records.*

---

**L 24 203.3.3** page 59 **Board of Directors** **Modify**

203.3.3 Fees - Sanctions may be subject to an insurance surcharge, as determined by the Board of Directors or the House of Delegates.

**RATIONALE:** This proposal was adopted by the Board January 21, 2013 in response to unanticipated drastic increases in liability insurance costs. In full accordance with the Boards power to exercise the emergency power to adopt or suspend any swimming rule (Part 1 or Part 3) or administrative regulations of competition (Part 2). The president provided a detailed report of the action to the HOD as per 506.3.9. The action taken under this emergency provision shall be effective until the next meeting of the House of Delegates; therefore it must be voted on by the HOD to be in effect beyond this year.

---

**L 25 203.3.3A** page 59 **Long Distance & Open Water Committees** **Modify**

**A** The entry forms shall contain the language of the liability release as stated in article 204. ~~The language may only be modified by naming the sanctioning LMSC(s), sponsoring USMS club(s) and/or additional insured(s) following “UNITED STATES MASTERS SWIMMING INC.”~~ All swimmers, before participating, shall have signed the liability release.

*Rationale: Housekeeping. (Consolidation. Language from 202.1.1A(1), 203.3.3A, & 203.3.3B belongs in article 204, and should be deleted from the current articles listed above).*

---

**L 26 203.3.3B** page 59 **Long Distance & Open Water Committees** **Modify**

**B** ~~Event Entry forms, and programs, and results~~ must bear the statement “Sanctioned by (LMSC name) for USMS Inc. Sanction Number: \_\_\_\_\_.”

**Rationale 1:** Housekeeping (consistent language)

**Rationale 2:** It would be very helpful to swimmers, not to mention Record & Top 10 recorders, to have full information (sanction number, swimmer affiliation & age, pool compliance, etc.) contained in the results.

---

**L 27 203.3.3C** page 59 **Long Distance & Open Water Committees** **Modify**

**C** ~~If in the an event secures of a dual sanctions from more than one governing body,~~ entry forms, and programs and results must identify all of the other sanctioning bodies.

*Rationale: This proposal prepares the way and process for potential multiple sanctions of an event under article 203.1.1C.*

---

**L 28 204.1** page 60 **Long Distance & Open Water Committees** **Modify**

#### **204.1 RELEASE**

All individual membership application forms and sanctioned entry forms shall include a liability release. The liability release shall be signed by the person registering or entering. The language of the membership release shall be:

“I, the undersigned participant, intending to be legally bound, hereby certify that I am physically fit and have not been otherwise informed by a physician. I acknowledge that I am aware of all the risks inherent in Masters swimming (training and competition), including possible permanent disability or death, and agree to assume all of those risks. AS A CONDITION OF MY PARTICIPATION IN THE MASTERS SWIMMING PROGRAM OR ANY ACTIVITIES INCIDENT THERETO, I HEREBY WAIVE ANY AND ALL RIGHTS TO CLAIMS FOR LOSS OR DAMAGES, INCLUDING ALL CLAIMS FOR LOSS OR DAMAGES CAUSED BY THE NEGLIGENCE, ACTIVE OR PASSIVE, OF THE FOLLOWING: UNITED STATES MASTERS SWIMMING INC., THE LOCAL MASTERS SWIMMING COMMITTEES, THE CLUBS, HOST FACILITIES, EVENT MEET SPONSORS, EVENT OR MEET COMMITTEES OR ANY INDIVIDUALS OFFICIATING AT THE EVENTS OR MEETS OR SUPERVISING SUCH ACTIVITIES. In addition, I agree to abide by and be governed by the rules of USMS.”

*Rationale: Housekeeping (consistent language): USMS now uses the terms “event” and “events” to define sanctioned open water events. Sanctioned pool events refer to “meet committee” and “meet officials”.*

---

**L 29 204.1** page 60 **Board of Directors** **Modify**

#### **204.1 Release**

All individual membership application forms and sanctioned entry forms shall include a liability release. The liability release shall be signed by the person registering or entering. The liability release shall conform to the language and format specified by USMS.

- 202.1.1 Sanction Requirements**—Sanctions shall be issued, withheld or withdrawn in accordance with the following:
- A Applications for sanction shall be made to the LMSC within which the event is to be held, and applications shall be accompanied by a copy of the entry form and applicable fee.
    - (1) The entry forms shall contain the language of a liability release that shall conform to the language and format specified by USMS. All swimmers, before participating, shall have signed the liability release.

- 203.3.3 Entry Forms and Programs**
- A The entry forms shall contain a liability release that shall conform to the language and format specified by USMS. All swimmers, before participating, shall have signed the liability release.

**RATIONALE:** USMS should be able to change the language of its liability release in response to legal developments and the advice of counsel. Having the liability release in code makes it difficult to make such changes and makes the language subject to the votes and requisite compromises of a large House of Delegates. Some may argue that the release needs to be in the rule book for easy access to LMSCs and event hosts who need to refer to the language for entry forms and paper registration forms. However, this can be accomplished by putting on the USMS website or in some other place that does not require legislation for annual changes.

Similarly, requirements and variances, such as added language for open water releases and allowances to modify the release to add certain parties, can be stated somewhere other than in code. If this is done, these items can be removed from articles 204.1.1, 204.1.2, 202.1.1, and 203.3.3. Moreover, the liability release information on the USMS website can be used to set forth additional requirements that support the validity of the release and its conspicuousness, such as minimum point size, separation of the release from other language, and a prohibition on adding additional items (e.g. photographic releases) to the liability waiver.

---

**L 30 204.1.1** page 60 **Long Distance & Open Water Committees** **Modify**

~~204.1.1 The language of the entry release may be modified as described in article 202.1.1A(1). The language of the entry release may only be modified by naming the sanctioning LMSC, sponsoring USMS club(s) and/or other additional insured(s) following “UNITED STATES MASTERS SWIMMING INC.”~~

*Rationale: Housekeeping. (Consolidation. This language is taken from 202.1.1A(1), 203.3.3A, & 203.3.3B. It belongs in article 204, and should be deleted from the current articles listed above).*

---

**L 31 402.4** page 84 **Board of Directors** **Modify**

## 402.4 UNSPORTING CONDUCT

.....  
402.4.8 Causing a credible and material risk to the safety of USMS members or others who may be present during USMS activities. A lifetime ban, declaration of permanent ineligibility, or permanent resignation of membership from a member organization of United States Aquatic Sports may be considered as evidence of a violation of this article 402.4.8.

**RATIONALE:** This provision allows an action to be brought under Part 4 if a person’s participation in USMS creates a material safety risk to others, including a person who has been banned by a USAS organization. This provision does not create an automatic ban from USMS for someone who has been banned from a United States Aquatic Sports (“USAS”) organization because a banned person may not necessarily create a material safety risk by participating in USMS activities, such as swimming in a swim practice with other adults. But it recognizes that there may be circumstances where the severity of the violation for which a person was banned from a USAS organization or the type of activity in which the person engages while participating in USMS (e.g. coaching) may create a material safety risk for USMS members or others who may be present during the USMS activity.

Other articles that would require changing in order to maintain consistency

## 403.4 JURISDICTION OF THE NATIONAL BOARD OF REVIEW

**403.4.1** The National Board of Review has original and exclusive jurisdiction to hear:

.....  
**B** Any complaint of violation of article 402.4.4, providing false information, or article 402.4.8, causing a credible and material risk to safety.

---

<b>L 32</b>	402.4.5	page 84	<b>Pacific LMSC</b>	<b>Modify</b>
-------------	---------	---------	---------------------	---------------

**402.4.5** Any nonconsensual physical contact, obscene language or gesture, or other threatening language or conduct directed toward ~~meet~~ personnel or staff, in connection with a USMS event.

Rationale: Remove word “meet” to allow all event types, add “staff” to recognize both paid and unpaid event workers.

---

<b>L 33</b>	402.4.6	page 84	<b>Pacific LMSC</b>	<b>Delete</b>
-------------	---------	---------	---------------------	---------------

~~**402.4.6** Any nonconsensual sexual conduct, pattern of unwelcome sexual advances or other inappropriate sexually oriented behavior or action by a USMS member toward a member or any other person participating in any capacity whatsoever in the affairs or activities of USMS.~~

Rationale: This section attempts to put certain civil or criminal behavior under the control and purview of USMS. It asks USMS to enforce a set of behaviors that are beyond the scope and ability of USMS to reasonably act or respond. Any infraction of this section is more appropriately handled by local law enforcement agencies.

---

L 34 403.4 page 84 Board of Directors Add

**403.4 National Board of Review Procedures** (New paragraph, re-number subsequent paragraphs)  
The Board of Directors shall establish National Board of Review Procedures. These procedures shall set forth the process that will be used for matters filed with the National Board of Review including, but not limited to how disputes and appeals shall be filed, timing for each aspect of the National Board of Review hearing and appeal process, fees, structure of hearing panels, conduct of panel hearings, and notifications to the parties. The National Board of Review Procedures shall be made publicly available and shall be updated on a periodic basis.

**Rationale:** Code should state clearly that there shall be NBR Procedures and that the Board of Directors is responsible for establishing them. While the Board of Directors may delegate the creation and updating of the procedures to others, such as the NBR Chair or a task force, it should be stated in code that the procedures are the board's responsibility. The procedures should also be made publicly available, which may mean posting on the USMS website today, but could take some other form in the future.

---

L 35 403.4.1 page 84 Board of Directors Modify

**403.4.1** Because certain disputes are most appropriately heard at the national level, the ~~The~~ National Board of Review has original and exclusive jurisdiction to hear:

**A** Any complaint from members of USMS where more than one LMSC is involved.

**B** Any complaint of violation of article 402.4.4, providing false information.

**C** Any complaint initiated by USMS.

Upon a majority vote of the Executive Committee, the National Board of Review may be assigned exclusive and immediate jurisdiction at any stage of any matter within the purview of this article 403 to serve the best interests of Masters swimming.

**Rationale:** This explains why the NBR has "exclusive jurisdiction" in specific matters.

---

L 36 403 page 84 Board of Directors Modify

**403.4.3**

**a.** Matters of jurisdiction to the National Board of Review shall be initiated by a written grievance filing made in accordance with the National Board of Review Procedures. ~~served upon the National Office accompanied by the filing fee. The written grievance shall set forth all parties against which the grievance is filed (respondents) and shall state the grounds for the grievance, citing factual and legal issues in as much detail as possible. Instructions on how to file a grievance may be obtained from the National Office.~~

**b.** Requests to the National Board of Review for review of LMSC decisions shall be initiated by a written request for review filed in accordance with the National Board of Review Procedures.

**403.7.2** The petition for appeal shall be served upon the National Office in accordance with the National Board of Review Procedures. ~~within 30 days of the postmark date of the mailing of the LMSC's written~~

decision and shall be accompanied by the filing fee. The petition shall set forth the grounds for appeal, citing factual and legal issues in as much detail as possible.

#### **403.8 Hearing Panel Procedure**

If, pursuant to the authority in article 403.6, the chair chooses to appoint a hearing panel to decide a dispute matter, the National Board of Review Procedures shall govern the process for submissions and scheduling, and the conduct of any hearing. A written decision shall be rendered by the hearing panel. following procedure shall be used:

~~403.8.1~~ The chair shall set a hearing date, which shall be 50 to 75 days from the postmark date of mailing the notice of hearing.

~~403.8.2~~ The chair shall mail the notice of hearing, together with a copy of the written grievance received by the National Office, to the respondents.

~~403.8.3~~ The respondents shall have 30 days from the postmark date of mailing to submit a written response to the charges. The response shall be mailed to the chair and the grievant.

~~403.8.4~~ The grievant shall have 10 days from the postmark date of mailing of the response to submit a written rebuttal. The written rebuttal shall be mailed to the chair and the respondents.

~~403.8.5~~ At the hearing panel's discretion, a decision may be rendered based solely on the written submissions. A written decision shall be mailed to the parties and shall inform the parties that an appeal to the Board of Directors is available.

~~403.8.6~~ Conduct for all hearings shall be in accordance with the National Board of Review Procedures.

~~403.8.7~~ A written decision shall be rendered by the hearing panel and shall be mailed to the parties within seven days after the hearing. The written decision shall set forth the right of appeal.

#### **403.9 Appeal to the Board of Directors**

Any person directly affected by the National Board of Review's decision may appeal to the Board of Directors for review of any decision of the National Board of Review within 30 days of the postmark date of the mailing of the National Board of Review's written decision, in accordance with NBR Procedures.

~~403.9.1~~ The petition for appeal shall be served upon the National Office and shall be accompanied by the filing fee. The petition shall set forth the grounds for appeal, citing factual and legal issues in as much detail as possible.

~~403.9.2~~ The USMS president and National Board of Review chair shall select, from the Board of Directors, a board panel chair and four additional board panel members to hear the appeal.

~~403.9.3~~ The National Office shall send a copy of the petition for appeal to the respondent and all members of the board panel. The respondent shall then have 30 days from the postmark date of mailing of the petition to file a written response with the board panel chair and the grievant. The board panel chair may decrease or increase the time limits for any of the foregoing, upon request of either party on a showing of good cause.

~~403.9.4~~ The board panel may assess costs and fees against any or all named parties.

~~403.9.5~~ The review by the board panel shall be on the basis of the record from the National Board of Review and written briefs and shall not include new evidence. However, by majority vote, the board panel may decide to take new evidence and hear testimony.

~~403.9.6~~ The board panel shall render a final and binding decision within 75 days from the appeal filing date. A and a written decision shall be sent to all parties.

**Rationale:** This proposal will take the operational processes out of the Rules and put them into the NBR Procedures which will be approved by the Board and then posted on the USMS Website so they are accessible to all. The basic structure (NBR Chair and NBR Committee, jurisdiction)-and basic procedural requirements should still be in the Rules. The operational processes (time frames, page length of filings, filing fees) should be in the Procedures, so that they can be changed as needed (but only with Board approval).

---

**L 37** 403.4.4 page 84 **Pacific LMSC** **Add**

**403.4.4** Third party complaints shall not be considered for review.

Rationale: The fact that someone can now initiate a complaint against someone with whom they have never spoken should not be, by any standard, allowable. All of the complaints and/or grievances should be between two parties, with the Board of Review acting as arbiter.

---

**L 38** 403.6 page 85 **Board of Directors** **Modify**

**403.6 Authority of the National Board of Review Chair**

With regard to matters within the original or appellate jurisdiction of the National Board of Review, the National Board of Review chair has the authority to take one or more of the following actions when reviewing a matter:

**Rationale:** We want to be sure that the NBR Chair has the right to take any of these actions, but is required to pick at least one of them (e.g., refer an appeal of an LMSC decision back to the LMSC, or start an investigation prior to a hearing in a dispute). We believe that in almost every case, there will be a hearing, but before there is a hearing, the NBR Chair has the authority to ask for further materials or begin an investigation if the NBR Chair believes that the materials submitted are insufficient to make an informed decision.

---

**L 39** 403.6.2 page 86 **Pacific LMSC** **Modify**

**403.6.2** Dismiss a grievance or appeal determined to be without merit, with the concurrence of the USMS ~~president~~ Board of Directors.

Rationale: An agreement between two parties is not enough detachment to create a failsafe. If the grievance was filed against either the NBR Chair or President, or both, there is no way properly to handle it as currently written.

---

**L 40** 403.7.2 page 86 **Pacific LMSC** **Modify**

**403.7.2** The petition for appeal shall be served upon the National Office within 30 days of ~~the postmark date of the mailing of the~~ LMSC's written decision. Such decision shall be transmitted from the LMSC to petitioner by mail, electronic mail or other traceable media, as agreed to by both petitioner and LMSC in advance. Petitioner is solely responsible for giving accurate information for notification to be served.



**403.8.11** The Chair shall file monthly reports with the Board of directors of USMS. These reports shall include at least: a) names of parties to grievance/appeal, b) subject of grievance/appeal, c) stage of hearings (i.e., how far along is the hearing process).

Rationale: There has been more than one grievance which has lasted over one year. This is not fair to either party or USMS. If the BoD is notified of the progress, there is more incentive to keep the grievance/appeal moving through its process and not be left to stagnate, wither, or be forgotten.

---

**L 45 403.9.1** page 87 **Board of Directors** **Modify**

**403.9.1** ... The petition shall set forth the grounds for appeal, citing specific facts ~~factual and legal issues in as much detail as possible~~. The petition shall not include new evidence that was not part of the record from the National Board of Review.

**Rationale:** Focus appeals to the BOD on reasons why the appellant believes the NBR decision is in error under USMS Rules.

---

**L 46 403.9.5** page 87 **Board of Directors** **Modify**

**403.9.5** The review by the board panel shall be on the basis of the record from the National Board of Review and written briefs ~~and shall not include new evidence~~. ~~However, by majority vote, the~~ The board panel may decide in its sole discretion to take new evidence and hear testimony.

**Rationale:** Eliminate contradictory statements.

---

**L 47 403.10** page 87 **Pacific LMSC** **Modify**

#### **403.10 Documentation**

The National Office shall maintain a permanent file of all physical evidence and written decisions pertaining to any matter that was reviewed by the National Board of Review or the Board of Directors pursuant to Part 4. That file shall be retained for at least 10 years after the date of any final decision or withdrawal of any matter brought under Part 4. The files shall be made available to any member wishing to examine them.

Rationale: USMS has no need to keep any of the decisions secret from its members.

---

**L 48 502.10** page 92 **LMSC Development Committee** **Modify**

#### **502.10 LMSC ~~MINIMUM~~ Standards**

Each LMSC shall meet ~~minimum~~ required standards established by the USMS Board of Directors and published in the *USMS Policy Manual*.

---

#### **Rationale**

The LMSC Minimum Standards policy as approved by the House of Delegates in 2009 included two related sections: required standards and suggested standards. The intent was to have the required standards be the minimum level of service the LMSCs should be providing and meeting. But because

both are included in the policy, it is more accurate to refer to the entire policy as LMSC Standards and clarify the rule that only the required standards are those that shall be met.

**Other articles affected by this change needing amendments**

~~507.1.6 LMSC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE~~—The LMSC Development Committee shall work to strengthen LMSC governance and operations by providing educational opportunities and mentoring for LMSC boards and officers. The committee shall provide support for LMSCs. The committee shall review and identify LMSCs that are not meeting LMSC ~~minimum~~ required standards as defined by the Board of Directors and assist them in achieving compliance. ...

---

**L 49 503.4**                      page 93                      **Rules Committee**                      **Modify**

**503.4 Zone Policies**

Each zone may adopt and maintain policies that provide direction on such items as voting rights at meetings, budgets and financial records, zone championship meet conduct, zone records and zone Top 10.

Rationale: Clarify that zone policies for Top 10 can only govern a zone Top 10.

---

**L 50 506.1.2 and 506.7.1**    page 96 and 98                      **Pacific LMSC**                      **Modify**

**506.1.2** The nonvoting members of the Board of Directors shall consist of the executive director, legal counsel, ~~all past presidents not already voting members~~, a representative of each allied organization (as approved by the Board of Directors), and a representative from USA Swimming.

506.7 Permanent Committees of the Board page 98 add new, renumber.

**506.7.1 Advisory committee** - The Advisory committee shall assist the board by offering considered advice on topics referred to them by the Executive committee or Board of Directors. It may also examine current and proposed projects for comment or make proposals for USMS projects. The committee shall only be comprised of past presidents willing and able to participate. The current president may appoint a chair from the group.

Rationale: The past presidents, while having a wealth of knowledge, are better suited to perform in an advisory role in order to avoid unforeseen or inappropriate influence on board activity. Their presence on the board not only can intimidate the members and activities of the board, it can also inhibit the learning capabilities of the current president, who needs to perform in a leadership role, not that of a student.

In the governance committee that created the current structure, it was envisioned that the past presidents would play a supporting role with their well of knowledge and experience that the board could tap to avoid reinventing the wheel. What has happened generally is that many discussions are led by or influenced by one or more past presidents. One unfortunate result is that most of the board, including officers, sits silent because the past presidents speak with authority or zeal. Even though the past presidents have no vote, they certainly have a huge influence on the actions of the board simply by being present. Not always a positive one.

It is unclear if any other organization treats its past presidents to a lifetime position on the board of directors, it seems counterproductive to growth of the organization or cultivating new ideas and

leadership. The past presidents have done and continue to do plenty of work for USMS, they need not be a permanent fixture on its board as well.

---

**L 51 506.7** page 98 **Board of Directors** **Modify**

**506.7 Permanent Committees of the Board**

There shall be permanent committees of the Board ... member of USMS not on the Board. The presence of a majority of the committee members with voting privileges shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of a permanent committee of the Board, except for scheduled meetings in conjunction with the annual meeting of the House of Delegates where a quorum shall consist of those members of the committee present and voting.

**RATIONALE:** Currently our rules don't give a quorum requirement for committees, so we default to the current Robert's Rules of Order, which are somewhat unclear on the matter. Because of this a committee may have conducted business without proper authority. Also, with our committees meeting more frequently, often via conference call, it is feasible that without a clear definition of a quorum, committee business could be conducted by 1 or 2 committee members. In addition, we need to conduct committee business during the annual meeting, so we need to have a lower threshold in case of emergencies.

---

**L 52 506.7.4** page 98 **Board of Directors** **Modify**

506.7.4 Audit Committee - The Audit Committee shall assist the Board of Directors with its financial oversight responsibilities. The committee shall review and monitor the reliability and integrity of the financial statements of US Masters Swimming, monitor compliance with tax, legal and regulatory requirements, monitor and evaluate effectiveness of the organization's operating systems, and monitor the independence and performance of USMS's external auditors. In performing its duties, the committee shall confer directly with USMS management and external auditors and shall report its findings and recommendations in writing to the Board.

Rationale: The Audit Committee is critical to oversight of USMS financial operations and is expected to continue as a committee for the foreseeable future.

---

**L 53 506.7.5** page 98 **Board of Directors** **Modify**

506.7.5 Investment Committee

The Investment Committee shall be responsible for developing and submitting written recommendations for Board of Directors approval of investment objectives, asset allocation targets, and performance measurement standards that are consistent with the overall fund investment goals. The committee shall review and evaluate investment results at least quarterly and take whatever action is deemed prudent when the advisor or any selected investment fails to meet performance expectations. The committee shall be responsible for ensuring compliance with all relevant federal and state regulation.

Rationale: The Investment Committee is critical to monitoring and ensuring USMS investment funds are invested according to USMS Investment Policy and is expected to continue as a committee for the foreseeable future.

507.1 Standing Committees

Standing committees shall be as listed in this article... Associate and ex officio members shall have voice but no vote. The presence of a majority of the committee members with voting privileges shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of a standing committee, except for scheduled meetings held in conjunction with the annual meeting of the House of Delegates where a quorum shall consist of those members of the committee present and voting.

**RATIONALE:** Currently our rules don't give a quorum requirement for committees, so we default to the current Robert's Rules of Order, which are somewhat unclear on the matter. Because of this a committee may have conducted business without proper authority. Also, with our committees meeting more frequently, often via conference call, it is feasible that without a clear definition of a quorum, committee business could be conducted by 1 or 2 committee members. In addition, we need to conduct committee business during the annual meeting, so we need to have a lower threshold in case of emergencies.

**507.1.9 Open Water Committee**—The Open Water Committee shall promote the development of and participation in open water swimming. The committee shall develop educational resources for open water participants and event directors. The committee, with input from the Long Distance Committee, shall prepare guidelines pertaining to the management of USMS Open Water Swimming for approval by the Board of Directors. The committee shall increase awareness about open water swimming and identify opportunities to promote USMS. The committee shall consist of the committee chair and sufficient members to execute the committee function. The Long Distance Committee chair shall be an ex officio member of the committee.

*Rationale:* Reflects the division of labor between the Open Water and Long Distance committees on development of the Open Water Guide to Operations.

*Change required to Article 301.2.1.* Since the current rule assigns the OWGTO to the LDC and the OWC is managing the OWGTO, an amendment to article 301.2.1 is necessary and would fall under Proposed Amendments Requiring Action of More Than One Committee (601.4.5).

AND

**301.2.1 Open Water Guide to Operations** ~~The Long Distance Committee, with input from the Open Water Committee, shall develop and maintain a USMS Open Water Guide to Operations.~~ An Open Water Guide to Operations (OWGTO) shall be developed and published for the use of USMS open water officials and event hosts. The manner of implementation, governing policies and management of the rules applying to open water swims shall be contained in this guide.

*Rationale:* Brings this rule into alignment with the proposed amendment of article 507.1.9 (OWC definition).

**507.1.13 Rules Committee**—The Rules Committee shall ~~assure~~ ensure that the competitive rules in Part 1 of the USMS rules and regulations provide for fair and equitable competition in the best interests of all USMS members, ~~and that~~ The committee shall ensure that the USMS members are informed of current rules, interpretation and changes. The ~~Rules C~~committee may initiate and shall accept, consider and report proposed amendments, with the committee’s recommendations, at the annual meeting of the House of Delegates, in accordance with the provisions of Part 6. When necessary, the committee shall interpret and render opinions regarding any provision of the rules and regulations of USMS within the committee’s jurisdiction as defined in article 601.1. The committee shall consist of the committee chair and sufficient members to execute the committee function, with at least one member from each zone, not to exceed 16 additional members. The Legislation Committee chair, the rule book coordinator, the Officials Committee chair and the USA Swimming Rules and Regulations Committee chair shall be ex officio members of the committee.

Rationale: Split overly long, first sentence into two sentences, change “assure” to “ensure”, and use parallel construction (to other committee descriptions) in the third sentence.

---

**L 57 601.2.3**            page 107            **Long Distance & Open Water Committees**            **Modify**

**601.2.3 Submission Deadline**—The deadline for changes submitted by an LMSC to the chair of the LMSC Development Committee is February 1. Proposed changes to the *USMS Code of Regulations and Rules of Competition* by an LMSC must be submitted to the chair of the Legislation, Long Distance or Rules Committee not later than July 10 to be considered as described in articles 601.4.1, 601.4.2 and 601.4.3.

**601.2.4 Submissions After the Deadline**— The Board of Directors, Executive Committee or standing committees of the House of Delegates may propose changes to the USMS code after July 10. Such proposed changes shall be considered by the committee of jurisdiction as emergency amendments as described in article 601.4.6, unless the committee of jurisdiction, at the annual meeting, determines by two-thirds vote that the proposed changes should not be considered as emergency amendments. Such proposed changes will be amended in accordance with the voting requirements in articles 601.4.1, 601.4.2 or 601.4.3, as applicable.

*Rationale: This amendment splits a long article into its component parts. Having the vote taken at convention gives the proponents an opportunity to speak to their proposal in person and takes into consideration that there can be legitimate reasons why a proposal may be made after July 10.*

---

**L 58 601.2.3**            page 107            **Rules Committee**            **Modify**

**601.2.3 Submission Deadline**—The deadline for changes submitted by an LMSC to the chair of the LMSC Development Committee is February 1 to be considered as described in article 601.4.4. Proposed changes to the *USMS Code of Regulations and Rules of Competition* by an LMSC must be submitted to the chair of the Legislation, Long Distance or Rules Committee not later than July 10 to be considered as described in articles 601.4.1, 601.4.2 and 601.4.3. The Board of Directors, Executive Committee or standing committees of the House of Delegates, may propose changes to the USMS code after July 10. Such proposed changes shall be considered by the committee of jurisdiction as emergency amendments as described in article 601.4.6, unless the committee of jurisdiction determines by two-thirds vote that the proposed changes should not be considered as emergency amendments. Such proposed changes will be amended in accordance with the voting requirements in articles 601.4.1, 601.4.2 ~~or~~ 601.4.3, or 601.4.4 as applicable.

Rationale: Parallel language (end of first sentence) to that in the end of the second sentence, and add 601.4.4 to the voting requirements in the last sentence for the LMSC Development Committee.

---

**L 59 601.3** page 108 **Long Distance & Open Water Committees** **Modify**

### **601.3 Modification of Proposed Amendments**

Proposed amendments may be modified in any manner by the Legislation, LMSC Development, Long Distance, Rules Committee or House of Delegates, where appropriate, while under consideration by said body. Such modification must be germane to the subject matter and intent of the proposed change. Such modification by the Legislation, LMSC Development, Long Distance or Rules Committee requires a majority vote. Such modification by the House of Delegates requires a two-thirds vote.

***Rationale:** Modifying proposed amendments should be done in committee where there is adequate time to thoroughly discuss and debate the merits of the modification. The nature and rules of our House of Delegates do not lend themselves to a complete investigation of the ramifications of new amendments. By raising the voting requirements in the House, more of these modifications should be addressed in committee.*

---

**L 60 601.5** page 109 **Long Distance Committee** **Modify**

### **601.5 Effective Date**

Unless otherwise specified, all changes to Part One of these Rules and Regulations approved as prescribed shall become effective on ~~January 1~~ March 1 of the year following their adoption, unless otherwise specified at the time of adoption. All other amendments to these Rules and Regulations approved as prescribed shall become effective on January 1 of the year following their adoption unless otherwise specified at the time of adoption.

Rationale: Our current date of January 1 for Part 1 changes is not easily enforced as the hard copy of the rule book is not typically available on that date. Changing the effective date to March 1 for Part 1 changes gives us plenty of time to have the printed rule book in our hands and enough time for implementation before we get into championship meets, i.e. not changing rules just prior to a nationals.

---